Supporting Pupils with Medical Conditions: Appendix L



Asthma Policy

"What does the Lord ask of you? To act justly, to love mercy and to walk humbly with your God."

(Micah 6:8)



Contents:

Statement of intent

- 1. Background
- 2. Key roles and responsibilities
- 3. Asthma medicines
- 4. Emergency inhaler
- 5. Symptoms of an asthma attack
- 6. What to do when a child has an asthma attack
- 7. <u>Important points to remember</u>
- 8. Record keeping
- 9. Exercise and physical activity
- 10. Out-of-hours sport
- 11. The school environment
- 12. Pupils falling behind
- 13. Monitoring and review

Appendices

Appendix 1 – Letter to Parents

Appendix 2 – Data Collection Sheet

Statement of intent

In our school, our Christian vision shapes all we do. All members of the school community are committed to upholding the St Michael's Church of England Christian values:

- to show love, care and kindness to all in our community
- to value what we have and to share with others
- to enable everyone to achieve their full potential

St Michael's Church of England High School:

- recognises that asthma is a serious but controllable condition and welcomes all pupils with asthma
- ensures that pupils with asthma can and do participate fully in all aspects of school life including physical exercise, visits, field trips and other out-of-school activities
- recognises that pupils with asthma need immediate access to reliever inhalers at all times
- keeps a record of all pupils with asthma and their medicinal requirements
- ensures that the school environment is conducive to the education of pupils with asthma.
- ensures that all members of school staff (including supply teachers and support staff) who come into contact with pupils with asthma know what to do in the event of an asthma attack
- understands that pupils with asthma may experience bullying and has procedures in place to prevent this occurring
- works in partnership with interested parties, such as the governing body, members of school staff, parents, pupils and outside agencies, to ensure the best educational outcomes possible for pupils with asthma

Signed by:	θ_{α}			
	Cary	_ Headteacher	Date:	28/01/2021
	C. Haloll	Chair of governors	Date:	28/01/2021

Date adopted 5th July 2018

Date reviewed 28th January 2021

Review date May 2024

1. Background

- 1.1 This policy has been created with regard to the following DfE guidance:
 - 'Supporting pupils at school with medical conditions' December 2015
 - 'Guidance on the use of emergency salbutamol inhalers in schools' March 2015
- 1.2 This policy has also been created in consultation with parents/carers, the governing body, school nurses and pupils, and with regard to additional guidance from Asthma UK and healthcare professionals.
- 1.3 This policy enables pupils with asthma to manage their condition effectively in school and provides clear procedures to help ensure their safety and wellbeing.
- 1.4 This policy also encourages and assists pupils with asthma in achieving their full potential in all aspects of school life.

2. Key roles and responsibilities

- 2.1 The governing body has a responsibility to:
 - ensure the health and safety of staff and pupils on the school premises and when taking part in school activities
 - ensure that the Asthma Policy, as written, does not discriminate on any grounds, including, but not limited to: age, ethnicity/national origin, culture, religion, gender, disability or sexual orientation
 - handle complaints regarding this policy as outlined in the school's Complaints Policy
 - ensure the Asthma Policy is effectively monitored and updated
 - report any successes and failures of this policy to the headteacher, members of school staff, local health authorities, parents and pupils
 - provide indemnity for teachers and other members of school staff who volunteer to administer medicine to pupils with asthma in need of help
- 2.2 The headteacher has a responsibility to:
 - create and implement the Asthma Policy with the help of school staff, school nurses, LA guidance and the governing body
 - ensure this policy is effectively implemented and communicated to all members of the school community
 - ensure all aspects of this policy are effectively carried out
 - arrange for all members of staff to receive training on: how to recognise the symptoms of an
 asthma attack; how to distinguish asthma attacks from other conditions with similar symptoms;
 how to deal with an asthma attack; how to check if a child is on the Asthma Register; how to
 access the emergency inhalers; who the designated members of staff are and how to achieve
 their help
 - ensure all supply teachers and new members of staff are made aware of the Asthma Policy and provided with appropriate training
 - monitor the effectiveness of the Asthma Policy
 - delegate the responsibility to check the expiry date of spare reliever inhalers and maintain the school's Asthma Register to a designated member of staff
 - report to the governing body and LA as necessary

2.3 Members of school staff have a responsibility to:

- read and understand the Asthma Policy
- know which pupils they come into contact with have asthma
- know what to do in the event of an asthma attack (as outlined in sections 6 and 7)
- allow pupils with asthma immediate access to their reliever inhaler
- inform parents/carers if their child has had an asthma attack
- inform parents/carers if their child is using their reliever inhaler more than usual
- ensure pupils with asthma have their medication with them on school trips and during activities outside of the classroom
- ensure pupils who are unwell due to asthma are allowed the time and resources to catch up on missed school work
- be aware that pupils with asthma may experience tiredness during the school day due to their night-time symptoms
- be aware that pupils with asthma may experience bullying
- make contact with parents/carers, the school nurse and special educational needs coordinators (SENCOs) if a child is falling behind with their school work because of their asthma

2.4 Members of staff leading PE lessons have a responsibility to:

- understand asthma and its impact on pupils. Pupils with asthma should not be forced to take part in activities if they feel unwell
- ensure pupils are not excluded from activities that they wish to take part in, provided their asthma is well controlled
- ensure pupils have their reliever inhaler with them during physical activity and that they are allowed to use it when needed
- allow pupils to stop during activities if they experience symptoms of asthma
- allow pupils to return to activities when they feel well enough to do so and their symptoms have subsided (the school recommends a five minute waiting period before allowing the pupil to return)
- remind pupils with asthma whose symptoms are triggered by physical activity to use their reliever inhaler before warming up
- ensure pupils with asthma always perform sufficient warm ups and warm downs

2.5 The school nurse has a responsibility to:

- assist in the creation of the Asthma Policy
- provide information about where the school can procure specialist asthma training

2.6 Pupils with asthma have a responsibility to:

- tell their teacher or parent/carer if they are feeling unwell
- treat asthma medicines with respect
- know how to gain access to their medication in an emergency
- know how to take their asthma medicine

2.7 All other pupils have a responsibility to:

• treat other pupils, with or without asthma, equally

- let any pupil having an asthma attack take their reliever inhaler (usually blue) and ensure a member of staff is called immediately
- 2.8 Parents/carers have a responsibility to:
 - inform the school if their child has asthma
 - ensure the school has a complete and up-to-date asthma card for their child
 - inform the school of the medication their child requires during school hours
 - inform the school of any medication their child requires during school trips, team sports events and other out-of-school activities
 - inform the school of any changes to their child's medicinal requirements
 - inform the school of any changes to their child's asthmatic condition. For example, if their child is currently experiencing sleep problems due to their condition
 - ensure their child's reliever inhaler (and spacer where relevant) is labelled with their child's name
 - ensure that their child's reliever inhaler and spare inhaler are within their expiry dates
 - ensure their child catches up on any school work they have missed due to problems with asthma
 - ensure their child has regular asthma reviews with their doctors or asthma nurse (every six to twelve months)
 - ensure their child has a written Personal Asthma Action Plan to help them manage the child's condition

2. Asthma medicines

- 2.1 Pupils with asthma are encouraged to carry their reliever inhaler as soon as their parent/carer and the school nurse agree they are mature enough.
- 2.2 Reliever inhalers kept in the school's charge are held in the medical room in a designated storage area.
- 2.3 Parents/carers must label their child's inhaler.
- 2.4 Parents/carers must ensure that the school is provided with a labelled spare reliever inhaler, in case their child's inhaler runs out, is lost or forgotten.
- 2.5 Members of school staff are not required to administer medicines to pupils (except in emergencies).
- 2.6 Staff members who have agreed to administer asthma medicines are insured by Sandwell LA when acting in agreement with this policy.
- 2.7 Staff members will let pupils take their own medicines when they need to.
- 2.8 This policy is predominantly for the use of reliever inhalers. Preventer inhalers are very rarely required at school. However, if they are needed, staff members may need to remind pupils to bring them in if they consistently forget.

3. Emergency inhaler

- 3.1 St Michael's Church of England High School keeps a supply of salbutamol inhalers for use in emergencies when a pupil's own inhaler is not available. These are kept in 'emergency asthma kits'.
- 3.2 Emergency asthma kits contain the following:

- a salbutamol metered dose inhaler
- two plastic, compatible spacers
- instructions on using the inhaler and spacer
- instructions on cleaning and storing the inhaler
- instructions for replacing inhalers and spacers
- the manufacturer's information
- a checklist, identifying inhalers by their batch number and expiry date
- a list of pupils with parental consent and/or individual healthcare plans permitting them to use the emergency inhaler
- a record of administration showing when the inhaler has been used
- 3.3 St Michael's Church of England High School buys our supply of salbutamol inhalers from Eureka.
- 3.4 The emergency inhaler should only be used by pupils, for whom written parental consent has been received and who have been either diagnosed with asthma or prescribed an inhaler as reliever medication.
- 3.5 Parental consent for the use of an emergency inhaler should form part of any pupil with asthma's individual healthcare plan.
- 3.6 When not in use, emergency inhalers are stored in the medical room in the temperate conditions specified in the manufacturer's instructions, out of reach and sight of pupils, but not locked away.
- 3.7 Expired or used-up emergency inhalers are returned to Eureka to be recycled.
- 3.8 Spacers must not be reused and may be given to the pupil for future home-use.
- 3.9 Emergency inhalers may be reused, provided that they have been properly cleaned after use.
- 3.10 In line with the school's Supporting Pupils with Medical Conditions Policy, appropriate support and training will be provided for relevant staff on the use of the emergency inhaler and administering the emergency inhaler.
- 3.11 Whenever the emergency inhaler is used, the incident must be recorded in the corresponding record of administration.
- 3.12 Whenever the emergency inhaler is used, the incident must also be recorded on the school's records, indicating where the attack took place, how much medication was given, and by whom, and the pupil's parents will be informed in writing.
- 3.13 Diane Stockton, Senior Administrative Officer, Inclusion, is responsible for overseeing the protocol for the use of the emergency inhaler, monitoring its implementation, and maintaining the Asthma Register.
- 3.14 Kate Wilcox and Rhonda Hodgetts are responsible for:
 - checking that inhalers and spacers are present and in working order, with a sufficient number of doses, on a monthly basis
 - ensuring replacement inhalers are obtained when expiry dates are approaching
 - ensuring replacement spacers are available following use.

 ensuring that plastic inhaler housing has been cleaned, dried and returned to storage following use, and that replacements are available where necessary.

4. Symptoms of an asthma attack

- 4.1 Members of school staff will look for the following symptoms of asthma attacks in pupils:
 - persistent coughing (when at rest)
 - shortness of breath (breathing fast and with effort)
 - wheezing
 - nasal flaring
 - complaints of tightness in the chest
 - being unusually quiet
 - difficulty speaking in full sentences
- 4.2 Younger pupils may express feeling tight in the chest as a 'tummy ache'.

5. What to do when a child has an asthma attack

- 5.1 In the event of an asthma attack, staff will follow the procedure outlined below:
 - keep calm and encourage pupils to do the same
 - encourage the child to sit up and slightly forwards do not hug them or lie them down
 - if necessary, call another member of staff to retrieve the emergency inhaler do not leave the affected pupil unattended
 - if necessary, summon the assistance of a designated member of staff, to help administer an emergency inhaler
 - ensure the child takes two puffs of their reliever inhaler (or the emergency inhaler) immediately, preferably through a spacer
 - ensure tight clothing is loosened
 - reassure the child
- 5.2 If there is no immediate improvement:
 - continue to ensure the child takes two puffs of their reliever inhaler every two minutes, until their systems improve, but only up to a **maximum of 10 puffs**
- 5.3 If there is no improvement before you have reached 10 puffs:
 - call 999 for an ambulance.
 - if an ambulance does not arrive in 10 minutes, administer another 10 puffs of the reliever inhaler as outlined in 6.2
- 5.4 Call 999 immediately if:
 - the child is too breathless or exhausted to talk
 - the child is going blue
 - the child's lips have a blue/white tinge
 - the child has collapsed
 - you are in any doubt

6. Important points to remember

- 6.1 Never leave a pupil having an asthma attack unattended.
- 6.2 If the pupil does not have their inhaler, send another teacher or pupil to retrieve their spare inhaler.
- 6.3 In an emergency situation, members of school staff are required to act like a 'prudent parent' known as having a 'duty of care'.
- 6.4 Reliever medicine is very safe. Do not be overly concerned a pupil may overdose.
- 6.5 Send another pupil to get a teacher/adult if an ambulance needs to be called.
- 6.6 Contact the pupil's parents/carers immediately after calling an ambulance.
- 6.7 A member of staff should always accompany a pupil taken to hospital by ambulance and stay with them until their parent/carer arrives.
- 6.8 Generally, staff will not take pupils to hospital in their own car. However, in some extreme situations St Michael's Church of England High School understands that it may be the best course of action.
- 6.9 If a situation warrants a staff member taking a pupil to hospital in their car, another adult must accompany them.

7. Record keeping

- 7.1 At the beginning of each school year, or when a child joins St Michael's Church of England High School, parents/carers are asked to inform the school if their child has any medical conditions, including asthma, on their enrolment form.
- 7.2 The school keeps a record of all pupils with asthma, complete with medication requirements, in its **Asthma Register**.
- 7.3 Parents must inform the school of any changes to their child's condition or medication during the school year via the data collection sheet. an **Asthma Policy Information Slip** (Appendix 2).

8. Exercise and physical activity

- 8.1 Games, activities and sports are an essential part of school life for our pupils. All teachers know which children in their class have asthma and are aware of any safety requirements.
- Outside suppliers of sports clubs and activities are provided with information about pupils with asthma taking part in the activity via the school's **Asthma Register**.
- Pupils with asthma are encouraged to participate fully in PE lessons when they are able to do so.

 Pupils whose asthma is triggered by exercise will be allowed ample time to thoroughly warm up and cool down before and after the session.
- 8.4 During sports, activities and games, each pupil's labelled inhaler will be kept in a box at the site of the activity.
- 8.5 Classroom teachers will follow the same guidelines as above during physical activities in the classroom.

9. Out-of-hours sport

- 9.1 St Michael's Church of England High School believes sport to be of great importance and utilises outof-hours sports clubs to benefit pupils and increase the number of pupils involved in sport and exercise.
- 9.2 Pupils with asthma are encouraged to become involved in out-of-hours sport as much as possible and will never be excluded from participation.
- 9.3 Members of school staff or contracted suppliers will be aware of the needs of pupils with asthma during these activities and adhere to the guidelines outlined in this policy.

10. The school environment

- 10.1 St Michael's Church of England High School does all that it can to ensure the school environment is favourable to pupils with asthma. The school does not keep any furry or feathered animals and has a definitive no-smoking policy throughout school grounds.
- 10.2 As far as possible, the school does not use any chemicals in art or science lessons that are potential triggers for asthma.
- 10.3 If chemicals that are known to be asthmatic triggers are to be used, asthmatic pupils will be taken outside of the classroom and provided with support and resources to continue learning.

11. Pupils falling behind

- 11.1 If a pupil is falling behind in lessons because of their asthma, the class teacher will talk to the parents/carers to discuss how to prevent the child falling further behind and possible ways for the child to catch-up.
- 11.2 If appropriate, the teacher will then talk to the school nurse and SENCO about the pupil's needs and possible interventions.
- 11.3 The school recognises that it is possible for pupils with asthma to have special educational needs due to their asthma.

12. Monitoring and review

- 12.1 The effectiveness of this policy will be monitored continually by the headteacher. Any necessary amendments may be made immediately.
- 12.2 The governing board will review this policy every three years.

Appendix 1 – Letter to Parents

[Date]

Dear Parent/Guardian,

Your child has had problems with his/her asthma/breathing today. This has required the use of their relief medication/the school emergency inhaler*.

You are strongly advised to have your child seen by your doctor, especially if your child is not known to be asthmatic, as soon as possible.

Yours faithfully,

Mrs J Gray **Headteacher**

*Delete as appropriate.

CC: School Nurse

Appendix 2 – Data Collection Sheet

PLEASE COMPLETE AND RETURN TO SCHOOL

	•									
			Data Collection She	et						
needs. It wil 1998 and the authority, he to date by la	l be kept on the school e General Data Protect ealth and welfare agen	compu ion Reg cies or v	orm is required for the efficient organter system under restricted access a gulations 2018. The information will where a law or an emergency necestion which you now supply changes	and i be d ssitat	is subject to the lisclosed only to tes a disclosure.	provision the Depa The info	ns of th artmer rmatio	ne Data Protection nt of Education, I n held must be k	on Act ocal cept up	
Student lega	l surname:				udent legal					
				-	forename: Student preferred					
Student preferred surname:					forename:					
Home Addre	ess:			Date of birth:						
Postcode:					ar group:					
has for a chil		rty) and	parental responsibility (the legal right danyone else you wish to be contact							
	Name of adult						I have legal parental			
	Relationship to child			responsibility:					ר	
ONE	, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,					l		Yes □ No □	<u>, </u>	
	Home address of adu	lt								
						Postcod	le			
PRIORITY ONE	Home telephone num	ber			Mobile telepho	ne				
	Work telephone number (if different)				number	, iic				
	Personal email address				I consent to yo contact Signed:	u holding my data as an emergency				
	Name of adult				I have legal parental					
	Relationship to child			responsibility:					٦	
								res 🗆 No C	J	
O _V	Home address of adu	lt								
⊢ ≻						Postcod	le			
PRIORITY TWO	Home telephone number				Mobile telephone					
PRIC	Work telephone number				number					
	(if different)									
	Personal email address				contact Signed:					
	Name of adult					e legal parental				
	Relationship to child			responsibility: Yes No					כ	
ш										
REE	Home address of adu	lt						T		
Ė						Postcod	ie			
PRIORITY THREE	Home telephone number				Mobile telepho	one				
PRIC	Work telephone number (if different)			number						
	Personal email address				I consent to yo contact Signed:	o you holding my data as an emergency				
			Dietary Information	1						
Does your ch	nild have any dietary re	quirem	nents? If so, please specify:							

Other Information												
Is the student a looked after child (e.g. fostered)?			Yes No		Is the student a post looked after child (i.e. adopted)?			Ye	Yes 🗆 No 🗆			
Does the student have a Special Guardianship Order in place?			Yes No		Is there a parent of the student serving in HM Forces currently/has done in the past six years or receiving a Forces Pension?			Yes No				
Health/Medical Information Please tick as appropriate												
Asthma	Yes \square	No 🗆	Serious allergic reaction	Yes	□ No □ se specify	Is your child or register?	n the SE	SEND Yes \(\square\) No (No 🗆	
Diabetes	Yes 🗆	No 🗆	Allergy to nuts	Yes		Does your chil disability?	d have	e a physical Yes No			No 🗆	
Seizures	Yes 🗆	No 🗆	Allergy to penicillin	Yes	□ No □	Is your child a	wheelc	Ichair user? Yes \(\simeq \) No			No 🗆	
Hearing loss	Yes 🗆	No 🗆	Other food allergy	Yes	□ No □	Is there a med place?		are plan in Yes			No 🗆	
Visual impairment	Yes 🗆	No 🗆	Allergy to other medication	Yes	□ No □	medication?				res 🗆	No 🗆	
Heart Disorder	Yes 🗆	No 🗆	Other (please specify below)	Yes	□ No □	Does your child receive services from any external agencies suc as CAMHS, Inclusion Support, and Speech & Language?			ch	Yes		
If you have ticked 'yes' in any of the boxes above please give details:												
GP Surgery:			Surgery Tel:									
Doctor's name:												
I agree to staff qualified in first aid treating minor ailments and accidents Yes No												
Please note that if you wish medication to be administered at school, you must complete a Request for School to Administer Medication form												
				Ethni	city							
White			Mixed		Asian or Asian British			Black	ck or Black British			
British			White & Black - Caribbean		Bangladeshi			Africa	can			
Irish			White & Black – African		Indian			Caribb	Caribbean			
Traveller of Irish Heritage			White & Asian		Pakistani			,	Any other Black background			
Gypsy/Roma			Any other mixed background		Any other Asian background			Prefer	Prefer not to say			
Any other white background			Chinese		Any other ethnic background							
Nationality												
Student's first language				Is English an additional language?			١	Yes				
Nationality as stated on passport or birth certificate Country of birth												
Religion												
Buddhist			Christian		Hindu			Jewish	vish			
Muslim			No religion		Other religion			Prefer	Prefer not to say			
Roman Catholic			Sikh									